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STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 15-3018T
TO BE OPENED: November 6, 2014 

TITLE: Actuarial Audit
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Tia Snyder
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP15-3018T

	1. 
	6
	1.5.3
	Q.
3.2.6 on page 12 deals with access to information and 4.2.6 on page 15 deals with exclusions. Please explain how this fits into offeror must meet all mandatory requirements as listed in 3.2.6 and 4.2.6 as these don’t seem to be offeror requirements.

A.
Section 4.2.6 is an Offeror requirement. The Offeror cannot have any conflicts of interest explicitly stated in this requirement. As for 3.2.6 the State revises section 1.5.3 of the RFP (new language underlined, old language interlined).

1.5.3  Mandatory Requirements.  To be eligible for consideration, an offeror must meet all mandatory requirements as listed in Sections 3.2.6 3.2.7 and 4.2.6.  The State will determine whether an offeror's proposal complies with the requirements.  Proposals that fail to meet any mandatory requirements listed in this RFP will be deemed nonresponsive.

	2. 
	11
	3.1
	Q.
Please provide the most recent actuarial audit report as that report is not available on the MPERA website link provided.

A.
The last actuarial audit report has been posted to the MPERA website.  It is available at http://mpera.mt.gov/docs/2004mellonactuarialreport.pdf 

	3. 
	11
	3.1
	Q.
Why is an actuarial audit being performed at this time?

A.
MPERA periodically seeks an actuarial audit as recommended by the GFOA to monitor the quality of actuarial services performed on behalf of the pension plan; to enhance the credibility of the actuarial valuation process; to increase public trust in how the pension plan is being governed; to help plan fiduciaries assess whether the plan is meeting its funding objectives; to remedy errors, if discovered; and to acquire recommendations for improving the actuarial valuation process.  

	4. 
	12
	3.2.3
	Q.
What is the date of the Board meeting in February 2015 at which we will need to present the Actuarial Audit report?

A.
The Board’s February 2015 meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 12, 2015.

	5. 
	14
	4.2.1
	Q.
Can client reference forms include both audit clients and retainer actuarial valuation clients?

A.
Offeror must provide three client reference forms from audit clients but the designated Actuarial Auditor is not required to have performed these three audits.

	6. 
	14
	4.2.1
	Q.
May the bidder use audit firm clients to meet the reference requirements?  For example, if the firm has performed pension actuarial review services for audit firm(s) as part of their audits of municipal pension funds, are references from the audit firm(s) acceptable?

A.
Yes, the Offeror may use audit firm clients to meet the reference requirements.

	7. 
	15
	4.2.3
	Q.
Regarding section 4.2.3 c and d, if the actuarial auditor has worked at the bidding firm less than 5 years, should the list of clients include those conducted while at a prior employer?  If some of the specifics of the projects are subject to confidentiality agreements, can specific names of clients/actuaries be redacted?

A.
Yes, the list of projects the Actuarial Auditor has performed should include all projects performed during the relevant time period even if the project was performed while at a prior employer.  Names may be redacted to the extent they are subject to valid confidentiality agreements but the name, job title and phone number of the Actuarial Auditor’s supervisor at the time of the project must be provided.

	8. 
	12
	3.2.5
	Q.
Is the presentation of results expected to be in person, or would video or telephone conference be acceptable?

A.
In person presentation is expected.

	9. 
	21
	Appendix B item #7
	Q.
If the use of a proposed subcontractor is clearly articulated in the proposal, would that be considered prior-written consent?

A.
No.  

	10. 
	
	
	Q.
Please verify that this review only covers the PERS-DB plan.
A.
Review is only of the PERS-DB plan as provided in Section 3.1. 

	11. 
	
	
	Q.
May we receive a copy of the most recent Actuarial Valuation report and the most recent Experience Study?

A.
The most recent actuarial valuations and experience studies are available on MPERA’s website at http://mpera.mt.gov/actuarialvaluations.shtml 

	12. 
	
	
	Q.
When was the last audit of the plan performed? What was the budget for this audit? May we receive a copy of the last audit report?

A.
The last actuarial audit was performed in 2004 by Mellon Human Resources and Investor Solutions.  The budget and fees incurred for the audit is unavailable.  The report has been posted to the MPERA website at http://mpera.mt.gov/docs/2004mellonactuarialreport.pdf 

	13. 
	11
	3.2
	Q.
Are actuarial audits for Montana PERA similar to the one described in the RFP performed periodically?    If an audit has been performed in the past: 

•
When was the last actuarial audit performed? 

•
Who performed the actuarial audit?  

•
Can we have a copy of the last actuarial audit report? 

•
What were the fees incurred for the last actuarial audit?

A.
MPERA anticipates periodically seeking actuarial audits.   See the Answer to Question 12 above with regard to the prior actuarial audit. 

	14. 
	12
	3.2.3
	Q.
The RFP indicates that the audit will begin on or after November 26, 2014 and should be completed by January 31, 2015. If the commencement of the audit process is delayed beyond November 26, 2014, will the January 31, 2015 deadline be extended?

A.
If the contract resulting from this RFP is executed after November 26, 2014, the contractor will have the right to negotiate a new deadline for completion of the audit report and presentation to the Board.  MPERA anticipates the next regularly scheduled Board meeting after the February 12, 2015 Board meeting will be April 9, 2015.

	15. 
	12
	3.2.3
	Q.
Can you please clarify the desired scope of the project?  In particular, will the engagement include the following review components: 

•
Review of valuation data, including a review of assumptions made on missing or inconsistent data, and reconciliation with original data sources. 

•
Review of liability calculations (accrued liability, normal cost) for sample individuals. 

•
Review of valuation programming based on the current actuary’s valuation system. 

•
Review of projections of actuarial measures and contribution requirements.

A.
(i) Yes.
(ii) The engagement will include review of the plan’s liabilities.
(iii) Contractor must use their own programming/system to evaluate the current actuary’s valuation. 
(iv) Yes.   

	16. 
	1
	1.1
	Q.

Why are you requesting an actuarial audit at this time?

A.
See the Answer to Question 3.

	17. 
	6
	1.5.1
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract, including the following: 

•
Limitations of liability to a fixed dollar amount, or to a multiple of fees, with the exception of gross negligence or intentional misconduct. 

•
Indemnification against third-party claims related to the use of our work product. 

•
A dispute resolution clause, whereas any disputes related to the contracted services would be resolved by arbitration. 

•
A change in payment terms allowing for monthly invoices for work in progress.

•
Changes to the contract language as noted in blue beginning on the following page [questions below].

A.
The State will consider non-material proposed modifications to the contract during the contract refinement process.

	18. 
	
	Appendix B; 1.2
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract section 1.2; typically, renewals after the initial term would be by mutual consent of the parties:

A.
Yes. All amendments or modifications are by mutual agreement, including contract renewals. See 26.2 of contract.

	19. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 4; [Offeror Name] can covenant that the work will conform in all material respects to the contract (noted in blue). 

4.
WARRANTIES
4.1 Covenant of Services.  Contractor covenants that the services provided materially conform to the contract requirements, including all descriptions, specifications and attachments made a part of this contract. The State’s acceptance of services provided by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations under this covenant. In addition to its other remedies under this contract, at law, or in equity, the State may, at Contractor's expense, require prompt correction of any services failing to meet Contractor's covenant herein. Services corrected by Contractor shall be subject to all the provisions of this contract in the manner and to the same extent as services originally furnished.  

A.
The State will consider non-material proposed modifications to the contract during the contract refinement process.

	20. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 5.2; [Offeror Name] would appreciate the opportunity to discuss this with the State of Montana.  Withholding payments is not a typical remedy under [Offeror Name] contracts.

A.
No.  

	21. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 6; Any audit right must be subjected to the following caveats.  Any audit may be conducted during the term of the Agreement at any Contractor facility at which the Services are being performed, at reasonable times during normal business hours, no more than once annually, and be subject to Contractor’s security and confidentiality requirements. Also, such auditors shall not be given access to (i) the proprietary information of other Contractor customers or contracts, (ii) Contractor locations that are not related to the State of Montana or the Services, or (iii) Contractor’s internal costs.  Further, Contractor shall not be required to cooperate with or grant access to any direct competitor of Contractor. Contractor will reasonably cooperate in the audits and reviews and furnish requested information on a timely basis provided, however, that  if such assistance requires a substantial level of resources, such assistance shall be chargeable at the time and materials rates set out in the applicable Statement of Work.
A.
No.

	22. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 8; marked in blue.
8.
HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION
Contractor agrees to protect, defend, and save the State of Montana and its elected and appointed officials, agents, and employees, while acting within the scope of their duties as such, harmless from and against all third party claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character, including the cost of defense thereof, arising in favor of Contractor's employees or third parties on account of bodily or personal injuries, death, or damage to tangible property arising out of the negligent performance of services performed or negligent omissions of services or in any way resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of Contractor and/or its agents, employees, representatives, assigns, subcontractors, except the sole negligence of the State of Montana or the State, under this contract.

A.
No. 

	23. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 9; marked in blue.
9.
REQUIRED INSURANCE
9.1 Primary Insurance.  Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the State, its officers, officials, and employees,   Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the State, its officers, officials, or employees,  shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

9.2 Specific Requirements for Professional Liability.  Contractor shall purchase and maintain Claims made coverage with combined single limits for each wrongful act of $1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate per year to cover such claims as may be caused by any act, omission, negligence of Contractor or its officers, agents, representatives, assigns, or subcontractors. Note:  If "occurrence" coverage s unavailable or cost prohibitive, Contractor may provide "claims made" coverage provided the following conditions are met:  (1) the commencement date of this contract must not fall outside the effective date of insurance coverage and it will be the retroactive date for insurance coverage in future years; and (2) the claims made policy must have a three-year tail for claims that are made (filed) after the cancellation or expiration date of the policy.
9.3 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductible or self-insured retention must be declared to the State.  Contractor shall solely be responsible for any deductible or self-insured retentions. 
9.4 Certificate of Insurance/Endorsements.  A certificate of insurance from an insurer or it’ with a Best's rating of no less than A- indicating compliance with the required coverages, has been received by the State Procurement Bureau, P.O. Box 200135, Helena, MT 59620-0135. Insurer shall endeavor to provide thirty (30) days notice to the State of any material change in insurance coverage, such as material changes in limits, coverages, material change in status of policy, etc.

A.

9.1 Yes.

9.2 Yes, if the conditions for attaining claims made coverage in 9.2 are met. 
9.3 No.
9.4 No. 


	24. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 11; marked in blue. 
11.
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
Contractor shall, in performance of work under this contract, fully comply with all federal, state, or local laws, rules, and regulations applicable to Contractor’s provision of the Services, including but not limited to, the Montana Human Rights Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Any subletting or subcontracting by Contractor subjects subcontractors to the same provision. In accordance with 49-3-207, MCA, Contractor agrees that the hiring of persons to perform this contract will be made on the basis of merit and qualifications and there will be no discrimination based upon race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin by the persons performing this contract.

A.
Yes.

	25. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 14. [Offeror Name] requires a 30 day right to cure any breach after notice of the same.  Also, [Offeror Name] does not typically permit partial termination of an Agreement
A.
The State will accept a modification to the contract providing the Offeror a 30 day  right to cure a breach after notice of the same.  The State will not accept modifications limiting partial termination of the agreement.

	26. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept deletion to the contract Section 15.1, [Offeror Name] does not agree to define, in advance, what constitutes a material breach.
A.
No.

	27. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 15.3; [Offeror Name] requires a 30 day cure period. Changes marked in blue.
15.3  Actions in Event of Breach.  

Upon the Contractor’s material breach, the State may:

●
Terminate this contract under Section 14; or
●
Treat this contract as materially breached and, except as the remedy is limited in this contract, pursue any of its remedies under this contract, at law, or in equity.

Upon the State’s material breach, the Contractor may:

· Terminate this contract after giving the State written notice of the stated failure. The written notice must demand performance of the stated failure within a specified period of time of not less than 30 days. If the demanded performance is not completed within the specified period, the termination is effective at the end of the specified period; or
· Treat this contract as materially breached and, except as the remedy is limited in this contract, pursue any of its remedies under this contract, at law, or in equity.
A.
Yes.

	28. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 16., marked in blue. 
16.
FORCE MAJEURE
Except for payment obligations, neither party is responsible for failure to fulfill its obligations due to causes beyond its reasonable control, including without limitation, acts or omissions of government or military authority, acts of God, materials shortages, transportation delays, fires, floods, labor disturbances, riots, wars, terrorist acts, or any other causes, directly or indirectly beyond the reasonable control of the nonperforming party, so long as such party uses its best efforts to remedy such failure or delays. A party affected by a force majeure condition shall provide written notice to the other party within a reasonable time of the onset of the condition.  In no event, however, shall the notice be provided later than five working days after the onset. If the notice is not provided within the five day period, then a party may not claim a force majeure event. A force majeure condition suspends a party’s obligations under this contract, unless the parties mutually agree that the obligation is excused because of the condition.  

A.
No.

	29. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 21. This is not a remedy that is typically granted in [Offeror Name] contracts. 
A.
No. 

	30. 
	
	
	Q.
Would the State of Montana accept modifications to the contract Section 22, [Offeror Name] requests a neutral governing law such as Delaware.

A.
No.  Choice of Law and Venue is per Montana Statute (18-1-401 MCA) and cannot be changed. 

	31. 
	
	
	Q.
[Offeror Name] requests the following additions to the contract as they are standard [Offeror Name] contract terms:

29.
The State’s Materials, Information, Data and Cooperation.  

To enable Contractor to perform the Services, the State will promptly provide Contractor with such direction, materials, information, data and access to its representatives as Contractor reasonably requests.  Contractor is not responsible for verifying the accuracy or completeness of information supplied to it by the State representatives.  If Contractor receives inaccurate, incomplete or improperly formatted information, Contractor shall have no liability for relying on the same, and any additional time and expense required to correct the information will be billed to and paid by the State as additional Services.  The Services Contractor has agreed to provide are solely those tasks specified in the applicable statement of work. Contractor shall not be responsible for administration of the State’s business or internal affairs in any fashion.  Performance of the Services does not imply additional or ancillary functions or obligations on the part of Contractor.  The Services provided by Contractor are advisory, and in the nature of consulting services; Contractor is not providing legal, trust or accounting services and is not taking on any fiduciary duties or obligations to the State. All of the Services provided by Contractor will be rendered in its capacity as an arm’s length independent contractor and not as an agent.

30.
Remedies.  

The State shall not assert or seek, and Contractor shall not be liable to the State for, any damages or other monetary claim or claims on any legal or equitable theory of liability or recovery exceeding, in the aggregate, the amount of the fees actually paid to Contractor by the State pursuant to this Agreement during the first 12 months of the term of this Agreement.  The State hereby waives and agrees not to assert any claims for lost profits, indirect damages, consequential damages, special damages, incidental damages, exemplary damages, and punitive damages, regardless of whether such claims arise pursuant to this Agreement or pursuant to another legal or equitable claim or relationship between the parties.  The provisions of this Section 30 shall apply regardless of whether any such claim or claims arise by statute, contract, indemnity, this Agreement, or otherwise arising in law or equity in any jurisdiction. The statute of limitations with respect to the assertion of any claims against Contractor shall expire one year following the earliest date when the alleged error or omission or other event giving rise to the alleged claim first occurred, and, if not timely asserted by the State by initiation of a claim in a court of competent jurisdiction, shall be forever barred. No act of Contractor other than the execution of an express waiver of the provisions of this Section 30 shall be effective to toll or extend the aforesaid one year limitation period or otherwise increase Contractor liability with respect to any claims asserted against Contractor.

31.
Non-Solicitation Personnel.  

During the term of this Agreement and for one year following the effective date of its termination, the State agrees that, without the prior written consent of Contractor, it shall not knowingly solicit for employment, any employee or former employee of Contractor who was engaged in the performance of the Services during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding such solicitation.  The preceding sentence shall not prohibit the State from considering for employment any such employee or former employee of Contractor who (i) seeks employment with the State in response to a general advertisement by the State (so long as the advertisement is not directed toward employees of Contractor) or (ii) is identified in the course of employment searches by an independent third party retained by the State (so long as the search is not directed toward employees of Contractor).

32.
No third party beneficiaries.  

The Parties hereto intend that no third party shall have any rights or claims hereunder or be entitled to any benefits under or on account of this Agreement as a third-party beneficiary or otherwise.  

A.
The State will consider the proposed modification #29 during the contract refinement process.  The State will not accept proposed modifications #30, #31, and #32.
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